THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Supreme Court

RECEIVED

Sep 28 2020

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

S.C. SUPREME COURT

The Honorable R. Ferrell Cothran, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2020-001232

Jeffery Wilder,

Appellant,

v.

Charleston County Bd. of Voter Registration & Elections, Charleston County Democratic Party, Dorchester County Bd. of Voter Registration & Elections, Dorchester County Democratic Party, SC Democratic Party, South Carolina Election Commission, Deon Tedder & Deon Tedder, LLC,

Respondents.

APPELLANT'S BRIEF

Tiffany R. Spann-Wilder, SC Bar #15913
SPANN WILDER LAW, LLC
P.O. BOX 70488
North Charleston, SC 29415
(843) 266-7792

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. Whether the lower court erred in determining Respondent Tedder was a resident of House District 109 and thus a constitutionally qualified candidate.
- II. Whether the lower court erred in finding that Tedder established his domicile at 2629 Orchid Avenue, a property in South Carolina District 109 on February 28, 2020.
- III. Whether the lower court erred in finding that Respondent Tedder was a qualified elector in House District 109 and met the qualifications of S.C. Code Ann. §§ 7-1-25(D) and 7-5-120.
- IV. Whether the lower court erred and incorrectly dismissed the declaratory action by adopting the findings of fact and conclusions of law from the order of the voter challenge appeal issued by Judge R. Markley Dennis on July 2, 2020.
- V. Whether the lower court erred in finding the matter was barred by collateral estoppel.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant (hereinafter “Wilder”), Respondent Tedder and Elder James Johnson all appeared on the Democratic Primary ballot on June 9, 2020. Wilder finished third (3rd) in the primary. On May 29, 2020, 11 days before the election, the Charleston County Board of Elections & Registration found that Respondent Tedder’s was not a valid electorate at the address 2629 Orchid Avenue, N. Charleston, SC 29405. On June 19, 2020, appellant brought this action against respondent Deon Tedder, Deon Tedder, LLC (collectively referred to a “Tedder”), Charleston County Board of Voter Registration, Dorchester Count Board of Voter Registration, Charleston County Democratic Party, Dorchester County Democratic Party and South Carolina Election Commission seeking certain declaratory and injunctive relief related to the election of the next representative for South Carolina House District 109. Specifically, Wilder asserted that Tedder did not meet the Constitutional requirements for House District 109 on March 23, 2020 when he filed for the office. Wilder sought to have Tedder removed from the Democratic Party ballot, to have

the South Carolina Election Commission to not certify votes cast for Tedder, and to enjoin him from continuing to run for House District 109.

On June 29, 2020, Appellant filed to Intervene as a party in Respondent Tedder's appeal hearing of June 30, 2020. Judge R. Markley Dennis, Jr. granted Appellant's Motion to Intervene. On July 17, 2020 a Motion to Dismiss in Lieu of Answer was filed for Deon Tedder and Deon Tedder, LLC. On July 22, 2020, Charleston County Democratic Party filed its answer and South Carolina Democratic Party, & Dorchester County filed their answers on July 24, 2020. Respondent Tedder filed a Motion for Protective Order, Motion to Quash Subpoena and Request for Sanctions on July 31, 2020.

Respondent Tedder's motions were heard on August 25, 2020 before Judge R. Ferrell Cothran, Jr. Judge Cothran dismissed the action on the basis that that the claim was the same of the matter heard before Judge Dennis and adopted the findings of fact and conclusions of law from that July 2, 2020 order and deemed the action as collaterally estopped. The order was signed on September 1, 2020 and the Notice of Intent to Appeal was filed on September 14, 2020.

FACTS

Appellant Wilder sought the Democratic Party's nomination for the office of South Carolina House of Representatives District 109. He filed for this office on March 17, 2020 using his home address since 2007 of 6977 Dorchester Road, North Charleston, SC 29418. Respondent Tedder (a member of the South Carolina Bar Association) sought the Democratic Party's nomination for the office of South Carolina House of Representatives District 109. On or about March 17, 2020, Defendant Tedder changed his voting address from 215 Promenade Vista St., Apt 4004, Charleston, SC 29412 (James Island section of the Lowcountry) to 2629 Orchid Avenue, North Charleston, SC 29405. He then filed to run for House District 109 on March 23, 2020 using the North Charleston address of 2629 Orchid Avenue, North Charleston, SC 29405. Respondent Tedder still possessed a North Carolina Driver's license at the time of his address change and filing. Elder James Johnson also sought Democratic Party's nomination for the office of South

Carolina House of Representatives District 109. He changed his address from 2676 Tillman Street, North Charleston, SC 29406 to 2931 Baker Avenue, North Charleston, SC 29405 and filed for House District 109 all on March 18, 2020.¹

On May 20, 2020, counsel for the Appellant filed a Voter Residency Challenge as to the validity of Respondent Tedder's address, thus the Constitutionality of his run for office as SC Constitution Article III, Section 7 states in part that **“A candidate for the Senate or House of Representatives must be a legal resident of the district in which he is a candidate *at the time he files for the office.*”** On May 29, 2020, The Charleston County Board of Voter Registration and Elections held a voter challenge hearing regarding Tedder's status as a qualified elector at 2629 Orchid Avenue, North Charleston, SC 29405. Tedder did not appear for the hearing, however, he was represented by counsel and submitted an affidavit and various documents.

The Charleston County Board of Voter Registration and Elections found 2629 Orchid Avenue, North Charleston, SC 29205 was not Defendant Tedder's domicile/residence as defined in S.C. Code §7-1-25 for purposes of qualifying that location for a change of his voter registration address as set forth in S.C. Code §7-5-120. This decision was rendered orally on the morning of May 29, 2020. The formal order was issued on June 11, 2020, two (2) days post the primary and Respondent appealed that same day. However, Respondent and the Charleston, Dorchester and State Democratic Parties were on notice immediately that Respondent failed to meet the requirement of the State Constitution Article III, Section 7 wherein it states “[N]o person is eligible for a seat in the Senate or House of Representatives who, at the time of his election, is not a duly qualified elector under this Constitution in the district in which he may be chosen. Colleen

¹ The Charleston County Board of Voter Registration found that Johnson was a valid registrant at Baker Avenue, a home that he owned in the District.

Condon, Chair of the Charleston County Democratic Party and counsel for all three (3) Democratic organizations was present at the hearing. Respondent and Candidate Johnson went on to a run-off election on June 23, 2020 at which time Respondent had been removed from the election rolls by the South Carolina Election Commission.

Appellant filed a declaratory action on June 19, 2020 on order to bring in all parties who had or would have a roll in the final determination in the House District 109 race. On June 29, 2020, Appellant filed to Intervene as a party in Respondent's Appeal hearing of June 30, 2020 on the basis that the state and local Democratic Party failed to take the required action in vetting Respondent and he if becomes the Democratic Party Nominee in the general election he could be disqualified by his Libertarian opponent if he wins for his failure to meet the Constitutional requirements of the office and it would lead to his ultimate removal and thousands of Democratic District 109 voters being disenfranchised. Judge R. Markley Dennis, Jr. granted Appellant's Motion to Intervene. Judge Dennis heard the matter on review of the submissions from below² and found in the Respondent's favor executing his order on July 2, 2020.

On July 11, 2020, Appellant timely filed a Motion to Reconsider pursuant to Rule 59 SCRPC and alternatively under Rule 60 (b)(2) SCRPC (Newly Discovered Evidence). While awaiting a ruling as to the Rule 59 and 60 Motions, Appellant sought to depose a corporate representative of the property owner at the home in which Respondent contends to reside. Respondent moved for a Protective Order from Discovery, to dismiss the Declaratory Action and for Rule 11 and Frivolous Claim Sanctions. Prior to the hearing on August 25, 2020 which was heard by Judge R. Ferrell Cothran, Jr., Appellant cancelled the deposition. In defense of the

² Judge Dennis DID NOT hear the matter De Novo. Tedder was not present at the original hearing and with no further testimony or submissions accepted, Judge Dennis reversed the Charleston County Board of Voter Registration's Panel.

Motion to Dismiss and the frivolous action and Rule 11 claims, Appellant provided an affidavit from the property manager in lieu of the deposition which stated that Respondent was not the tenant nor a listed occupant at 2629 Orchid Drive, North Charleston, SC 29405 and the tenant therein had no authority to extend occupancy without their express approval. (R.75). Judge Cothran dismissed the declaratory action on Respondent's position that the legal issues in the appeal and declaratory action and were the same. Appellant asserted that while the matters were tied to common facts, they were in fact different matters of law – one as to the validity of the electorate and the other to the constitutional qualification of the candidate which stems from his residency. Judge Cothran ruled from the bench in favor of dismissal and incorporation of Judge Dennis' order. Appellant submitted a proposed order as well (R17) but the order of the Respondent was executed.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

"On appeal from the dismissal of a case pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6), [SCRCP,] an appellate court applies the same standard of review as the trial court." Rydde v. Morris, 381 S.C. 643, 646, 675 S.E.2d 431, 433 (2009). "That standard requires the [c]ourt to construe the complaint in a light most favorable to the nonmovant and determine if the 'facts alleged and the inferences reasonably deducible from the pleadings would entitle the plaintiff to relief on any theory of the case.'" *Id.* (quoting Williams v. Condon, 347 S.C. 227, 233, 553 S.E.2d 496, 499 (Ct. App. 2001)). "If the facts and inferences drawn from the facts alleged in the complaint, viewed in the light most favorable to the plaintiff, would entitle the plaintiff to relief on any theory, then the grant of a motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim is improper." Spence, 368 S.C. at 116, 628 S.E.2d at 874.

"An abuse of discretion occurs when the [circuit] court's ruling is based on an error of law or, when grounded in factual conclusions, is without evidentiary support." Clark v. Cantrell, 339

S.C. 369, 389, 529 S.E.2d 528, 539 (2000). “Determining the proper interpretation of a statute is a question of law, and this Court reviews questions of law de novo.” Town of Summerville v. City of N. Charleston, 378 S.C. 107, 110, 662 S.E.2d 40, 41 (2008).

ARGUMENT

The Court should reverse the circuit court’s grant of Respondent Tedder’s motion to dismiss because its decision was controlled by errors of law. Specifically, the circuit court (1) erred in concluding that Respondent Tedder was a resident of House District 109 and thus a constitutionally qualified candidate; (2) erred in concluding that Respondent Tedder established his domicile at 2629 Orchid Avenue on February 28, 2020; (3) erred in finding that Respondent Tedder was a qualified elector in House District 109 and met the qualifications of S.C. Code Ann. §§ 7-1-25(D) and 7-5-120; (4) erred in dismissing the declaratory action and adopting the findings of fact and conclusions of law from the order of the voter challenge appeal issued by Judge R. Markley Dennis on July 2, 2020; and (5) erred in finding the matter was barred by collateral estoppel. The lower court abused its discretion in its disposition of this matter.

- I. Whether the lower court erred in determining Respondent Tedder was a resident of House District 109 and thus a constitutionally qualified candidate.
- II. Whether the lower court erred in finding that Tedder established his domicile at 2629 Orchid Avenue, a property in South Carolina District 109 on February 28, 2020.
- III. Whether the lower court erred in finding that Respondent Tedder was a qualified elector in House District 109 and met the qualifications of S.C. Code Ann. §§ 7-1-25(D) and 7-5-120.

In the adoption of Judge R. Markley Dennis’ order, the lower court validated Respondent’s Tedder’s domicile and residency in House District 109. Domicile is defined in S.C. Code Ann. § 7-1-25 and for purposes of voting it is further detailed in subsection D.

SECTION 7-1-25. 'Domicile' defined.

(A) A person's residence is his domicile. "Domicile" means a person's fixed home where he has an intention of returning when he is absent. A person has only one domicile.

(B) For voting purposes, a person has changed his domicile if he (1) has abandoned his prior home and (2) has established a new home, has a present intention to make that place his home, and has no present intention to leave that place.

(C) For voting purposes, a spouse may establish a separate domicile.

(D) For voting purposes, factors to consider in determining a person's intention regarding his domicile include, but are not limited to:

(1) a voter's address reported on income tax returns;

(2) a voter's real estate interests, including the address for which the legal residence tax assessment ratio is claimed pursuant to Section 12-43-220(C);

(3) a voter's physical mailing address;

(4) a voter's address on driver's license or other identification issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles;

(5) a voter's address on legal and financial documents;

(6) a voter's address utilized for educational purposes, such as public school assignment and determination of tuition at institutions of higher education;

(7) a voter's address on an automobile registration;

(8) a voter's address utilized for membership in clubs and organizations;

(10) residence of a voter's parents, spouse, and children; and

(11) whether a voter temporarily relocated due to medical care for the voter or for a member of the voter's immediate family.

At the hearing below from which Judge Dennis sat as the appellate court and reviewed the evidentiary submissions, Respondent Tedder did not provide information to comport with

subsections (D)(1), (D)(2), (D)(3), (D)(6), (D)(7), (D)(8), (D)(9), (D)(10) or (D)(11). Under (D)(5) Respondent Tedder submitted a SCDL which he acquired on May 14, 2020 just days before the May 29, 2020 hearing. (R. 298). Under (D)(6) he presented legal documents and a financial document; a copy of a sub-lease rental agreement at 2629 Orchid Drive, North Charleston, SC 29405 dated February 28, 2020 (r. 287) and his affidavit and he submitted a copy of a single pay stub dated March 13, 2020 from a payroll direct deposit. (R. 295).

However, contrary submissions of domiciliary far outweighed what was presented to support the same. They were as follows: Respondent's 1st Quarter Ethics Filing report where he made two (2) contributions to his campaign, one on March 23, 2020 the day he filed and the other on March 31, 2020 (both after his paycheck date) showing his home address at 1755 Central Park Rd. Charleston, SC 29412. (R.255); Mobile phone number match of (919) 699-3971 registered to Deon T. Tedder with address at 1755 Central Park Rd. Charleston, SC 29412 as of May 18, 2020 (R.253); Photo of the vehicle he drives bearing NC tags YYD 3467 (R.277); Tedder's Facebook post of May 16, 2020 congratulating his girlfriend on her graduation from dental school at the Medical University of South Carolina which contradicts statement 7 in his affidavit which implied that due to her acceptance to the University of Tennessee Dental residency in February 2020 that she immediately left town and had to obtain new housing (R.274) and University of Tennessee's residency program information detailing the start of the one year program from July 1 to June 30 (R.275); Registration of a vehicle to the home at Orchid Avenue that was not Tedder or Pasoquen, the actual tenant, but that of a woman, Alana Lipscomb as of December 2019 (R.279) which is contrary to the sublease which states that only Tedder and Pasoquen occupied the home (R.287); and February 6, 2020 Facebook post Trifecta Security congratulating Edward Pasoquen on his new baby boy and Facebook post of Alana Lipscomb announcing her baby boy on February 6, 2020 (R.281-282).

Judge Dennis took no other testimony and accepted no other evidence from any of the parties. However, during the declaratory proceeding, the lower court also had before it the property tax records confirming the owner of the home at 2629 Orchid Avenue (Conrex Property Mgmt) (R.78), the sublease agreement between Tedder and Pasoquen, a Conrex lease (R.91) and the Affidavit of Kenneth Barnes, the Conrex Property Manager (R.75) for the home and the reconciling of these documents should not have leadcaused the court to reach an adopted conclusion. The Affidavit clearly establishes that Tedder cannot be considered a legal resident at this address. Key excerpts are as follows (emphasis added):

5. In the Residential Lease Agreement for the Premises, Mr. Deon Tedder is not listed either as a tenant or as other occupant of the Premises.

6. Under the Residential Lease Agreement, the only person(s) permitted to live in the Premises are the tenant and the other occupants listed at the signing of the Residential Lease Agreement. Any change in occupancy at the Premises desired by the tenant requires the written consent of the landlord, which must be documented in an amendment to the Residential Lease Agreement, signed by the tenant and the landlord. No such amendment regarding occupancy has been executed by the tenant and the landlord regarding the Premises.

7. Under the Residential Lease Agreement, the tenant agrees not to transfer or assign the lease or sublease, license or permit the occupancy of others (including through services like AirBNB) of any part of the Premises without the landlord's prior written consent. No such prior written consent to sublease or to permit the occupancy of others has been provided by the landlord regarding the Premises.

Judge Cothran's adoption was an abuse of his discretion as this factual conclusion was without full evidentiary support. Further, as this was the interpretation of a statute and thus a question of law, the lower court should have reviewed de novo. A de novo review in light of the Affidavit should not have made it possible that any conclusion could be reached, but that 2629 Orchid was not Respondent Tedder's domicile as the lawful owner's agent clearly outlined that his presence there (if at all) is not legal.

In Gasque v. Gasque, this Court defined domicile to be the place where a person has his true, fixed and permanent home and principal establishment, to which he has, whenever he is absent, an intention of returning. 246 S.C. 423, 143 S.E.2d 811 (1965). The Court expounds on the definition in Ravenel v. Dekle, that intent is the most important element in determining domicile. In Ravenel, Charles Ravenel sought the Democratic nomination for Governor of the State of South Carolina. He was challenged for not meeting the State's constitutional requirement of being domiciled for five (5) years to run for the Office of Governor. "It is also elementary, however, that any expressed intent on the part of a person must be evaluated in the light of his conduct which is either consistent or inconsistent with such expressed intent. Other elementary propositions which require no citation of authority are that a person can have only one domicile at a time; one maintains his prior domicile until he establishes or acquires a new one. A person may have more than one residence, but cannot have more than one domicile or be a citizen of more than one state at the same moment." 265 S.C. 364, 377, 218 S.E.2d 521, 528 (S.C. 1975).

Respondent Tedder did not appear at the hearing regarding his voter registration status, he submitted testimony via affidavit and no where in that document does he express his intent to make 2629 Orchid his domicile and that he had abandoned his prior domicile. Additional information submitted for review was the extensive criminal history of the gentleman he alleges to sub-let from. While Appellant supports and advocates for opportunities for changing ones life around, however, the conduct of Respondent Tedder as a young, single lawyer does not square off with the likelihood of having a roommate with numerous felony convictions and also residing in the home with the roommate girlfriend and newborn baby. (R.264). Respondent's conduct in having been in Charleston since 2016 and still operating a vehicle with North Carolina tags and possessing a North Carolina driver's license at the time of filing for the office and only changing it days before

the challenge hearing do not align with having established a domicile. His conduct does not align with the Ravenel Court.

Judge Dennis did not hear the appeal de novo and Judge Cothran did not hear any testimony of Tedder or any other witness to gain any new information to rectify the ambiguities from below. There was nothing in the court's wheelhouse to support its ruling.

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