THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Supreme Court

RECEIVED

Oct 07 2020

S.C. SUPREME COURT

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
R. Ferrell Cothran, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2020-CP-10-2678
Appellate Case No.: 2020-001232

Jeffrey Wilder.....Appellant,

v.

Charleston County Board of Voter Registration &
Elections, Charleston County Democratic Party,
Dorchester County Board of Voter Registration &
Elections, Dorchester County Democratic Party, SC
Democratic Party, South Carolina Election Commission,
Deon Tedder & Deon Tedder, LLCRespondents.

**BRIEF OF RESPONDENT DEON TEDDER AND
RESPONDENT DEON TEDDER FOR SC HOUSE, LLC**

THE PEPPER LAW FIRM, PA

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

By unilaterally determining what his adequate remedy at law should be, Wilder attempted to purposely bypass the constitutional and statutory procedures for contesting a primary as intended by our legislature and clearly defined by this Court. He should not be able to ignore the law as a matter of convenience.

Upon failing to follow the methods outlined by S.C. Code Ann. § 7-17-560 and being prevented from relitigating the issue of Tedder’s domicile by the lower court, Wilder now turns to this Court for relief: “Based upon the foregoing, the Court should...require a new primary of the candidates who were constitutionally qualified for the office as of March 30, 2020 when the filing period ended.”¹ (Appellant Br. p. 13). Based on the above, however, even considering the requested relief would be improper since a citizen’s failure to challenge the results of an election pursuant to the methods outlined by the South Carolina law preclude the citizen from challenging the election through a lawsuit. Taylor v. Roche, 271 S.C. 505, 248 S.E.2d 580 (1978).

As evidenced by the facts above, the constitution, South Carolina Code, and controlling case law, Wilder is precluded from challenging the results of the party primary for House District 109. For this reason alone, the Court should dismiss the appeal.

II. Appellant’s Issues on Appeal were not preserved for appellate review.

This is an appeal from the circuit court’s grant of the motions to dismiss filed by Tedder and the LLC, respectively, by written order filed September 1, 2020. At the hearing on the matter before the lower court, the sole issue was whether Appellant should be collaterally estopped from litigating the issue of Tedder’s domicile. (R. pp. 14-16). Upon finding that Wilder was seeking to relitigate an issue which was decided in a previous action by the Hon. R. Markley Dennis, Jr., that being Tedder’s domicile, Judge Cothran informed Wilder that he could not reconsider Judge Dennis’s ruling and that the prior Order was “the law of the case. It establishes he meets the qualifications set forth in 7-[5]-120...He’s found ...he’s established domicile and that he’s qualified under the statute. I think that’s the law of the case. And so I think the only avenue you have is to appeal that order.” (R. p. 235, lines 16 – 25, p. 236, lines 1-3). Wilder did not offer any

¹ Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 7-11-55, the relief requested by Wilder in his Final Brief is improper.

rebuttal, argument, or objection to the Court’s finding at the hearing. Similarly, upon receipt of the written order of September 1, 2020 finding Wilder to be precluded from attempting to re-litigate the issue of Respondent Tedder’s domicile pursuant to the doctrine of collateral estoppel and granting the Motions to Dismiss of Tedder and the LLC, Wilder failed to file a motion to reconsider, alter or amend pursuant to Rule 59, SCRPC.

Instead, on September 14, 2020, Wilder appealed directly to this Court. To date, however, Wilder has not filed his Notice of Intent to Appeal with the Charleston County Court of Common Pleas as required by Rule 203(d)(1), SCACR.

“A losing party must first try to convince the lower court it has ruled wrongly and then, if that effort fails, convince the appellate court that the lower court erred.” I’On, LLC v. Town of Mt. Pleasant, 338 S.C. 406, 422, 526 S.E.2d 716, 724 (2000). “This principle underlies the long-established preservation requirement that the losing party generally must both present his issues and arguments to the lower court and obtain a ruling before an appellate court will review those issues and arguments.” Id. (citing Smith v. Phillips, 318 S.C. 453, 458 S.E.2d 427 (1995)). “If the losing party has raised an issue in the lower court, but the court fails to rule upon it, the party must file a motion to alter or amend the judgement in order to preserve the issue for appellate review.” Id. An appellate court cannot raise and rule upon an issue an appellant never advanced to the trial court. Repko v. Cty. of Georgetown, 424 S.C. 494, 818 S.E.2d 743 (2018).

As referenced in his Final Brief, Wilder’s Issues on Appeal are “(1) whether the lower court erred in determining Tedder was a resident of House District 109 and thus a constitutionally qualified candidate; (2) whether the lower court erred in finding that Tedder established his domicile at 2629 Orchid Avenue, a property in South Carolina District 109 on February 28, 2020; (3) Whether the lower court erred in finding that Tedder was a qualified elector in House District

109 and met the qualification of S.C. Code Ann. §§ 7-1-25(D) and 7-5-120; (4) whether the lower court erred and incorrectly dismissed the declaratory action by adopting the findings of fact and conclusions of law from the order of the voter challenge appeal issued by Judge R. Markley Dennis on July 2, 2020; and (5) whether the lower court erred in finding the matter was barred by collateral estoppel.” (Appellant Br. p. 1).

Wilder’s issues on appeal (1) – (4) are duplicative and can be encompassed into a single issue: whether the lower court erred in finding Tedder to be a resident of House District 109 on or before March 23, 2020 when he filed to be a candidate for the party primary. The arguments as to why the lower court erred in deciding this issue do not merit a response by Tedder, since the lower court did not hear arguments, much less make a factual finding or rule on Tedder’s domicile. As revealed in the hearing transcript and order granting the motions to dismiss, the sole issue before the lower court was whether the issue of Tedder’s residency had already been litigated and decided in a previous action, thereby precluding Wilder from relitigating the issue. After reviewing the pleadings, memorandum and hearing argument from Tedder’s counsel, the lower court decided that Judge Dennis had indeed previously decided this issue and ruled on same in a written order of July 2, 2020, which included a specific finding that Tedder established his domicile in District 109 on February 28, 2020. As a result, the lower court granted Tedder and the LLC’s motions to dismiss for failure to state a cause of action for which relief could be granted.

Wilder seems to be confused as to which order is on appeal before this Court, the July 2, 2020 order of Judge Dennis that found Tedder to have established his domicile in House District 109 on February 28, 2020 or the September 1, 2020 order of Judge Cothran finding the issue to have been previously litigated and rule upon. “[D]uring the declaratory proceeding, the...court...had before it...property tax records...sublease agreement...and Affidavit of Kenneth

Barnes...” (Appellant Br. p. 9). To the contrary, as this Court is aware, the lower court did not hear a “declaratory proceeding;” the sole issue before Judge Cothran, that is now on appeal before this Court, were the motions to dismiss. While the documents listed above were submitted to the lower court with Wilder’s “Plaintiff’s Opposition to All Defendants Motion to Dismiss, Motion for Sanctions & Motion for Protective Order,” they were not referenced, argued, nor introduced at the motion to dismiss hearing and whatever they purportedly referenced was not presented or ruled upon by the lower court. Further, and without citing any support for same, Wilder argues in his final brief that “the lower court should have reviewed de novo.” (Appellant Br. p. 9). Wilder did not present or argue for a de novo review at the motion to dismiss hearing. Finally, Wilder contends that “the matter was not reviewed under Rule 12(b)(6).” (Appellant Br. p. 11). Despite this being patently false and further proof of his confusion of the issue before this Court, nonetheless, Wilder did not raise that issue to the lower court.

Even if this Court were to find that any or all of the above were the subject of argument, objection or rebuttal by Wilder in the hearing on the motions to dismiss in the lower court, Wilder did not file a motion to alter or amend or in any way preserve them for appellate review. Accordingly, this Court lacks appellate jurisdiction over the issues on appeal (1) – (4) as stated by Wilder.

On the other hand, Tedder and the LLC concede that the issue on appeal (5) raised by Wilder in his Final Brief, that being whether Wilder was precluded from relitigating the issue of Tedder’s domicile pursuant to the doctrine of collateral estoppel, was in fact presented and argued before the lower court, but only by counsel for Tedder and the LLC, who used it as the sole basis for the motions to dismiss. Wilder, however, failed to object or offer any counterargument to the issue of collateral estoppel during the hearing before the lower court, and further, failed to file a

motion to alter or amend the judgment in order to preserve the issue for appellate review. Additionally, Wilder failed to address the issue of collateral estoppel in his final brief, thereby abandoning the argument on appeal. See Wright v. Craft, 372 S.C. 1, 640 S.E.2d 486 (Ct. App. 2006) (finding issue abandoned where it was raised in the statement of issues on appeal but not addressed in the brief). Accordingly, and similar to issues on appeal (1) through (4), this Court lacks appellate jurisdiction over issue on appeal (5) as stated by Wilder.

III. The lower court properly granted Respondent's Motions to Dismiss pursuant to the doctrine of collateral estoppel.

The sole issue before the lower court in the instant matter was Tedder and the LLC's motions to dismiss for failure to state a claim for which relief could be granted, the basis of which, was that the issue in which Wilder was attempting to litigate had already been decided in a prior action in which Wilder was a party. (R. pp. 34-37). "Collateral estoppel occurs when a party in a second action seeks to preclude a party from relitigating an issue which was decided in a previous action." S.C. Prop. & Cas. Ins. Guaranty Ass'n v. Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., 304 S.C. 210, 213, 403 S.E. 2d 625, 627 (1991). "When an issue of fact or law is actually litigated and determined by a valid and final judgment, and the determination is essential to the judgment, the determination is conclusive in a subsequent action between the parties, whether on the same or a different claim." Id. The doctrine of collateral estoppel is also known as "issue preclusion." In re Crews, 389 S.C. 322, 698 S.E.2d 785 (2010). Issue preclusion bars the re-litigation of only the particular issues that were actually litigated and decided in the prior suit. Crestwood Golf Club, Inc. v. Potter, 328 S.C. 201, 493 S.E.2d 826 (1997). To succeed on collateral estoppel, the party asserting collateral estoppel must "demonstrate that the issue in the past lawsuit was: (1) actually litigated in the prior action; (2) directly determined in the prior action; and (3) necessary to support the prior judgment." Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. at 627.

The issue of Tedder’s domicile was preliminarily decided by the Election Board’s decision of May 29, 2020. (R. pp. 1-8). Tedder properly appealed the Election Board’s decision to the Circuit Court, pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §§ 7-5-230. (R. p. 9). A hearing on Tedder’s appeal of the Election Board’s decision was held before the Hon. R. Markley Dennis, Jr. on June 30, 2020.

At the hearing on Tedder’s appeal of the Board’s decision, the lower court stated clearly that the issue the Board ruled upon was whether Tedder was domiciled in House District 109 pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 7-1-25. (R. p. 202, lines 19-21). Judge Dennis heard arguments from Tedder and Wilder. At the hearing, Tedder summarized the evidence that was presented to the Board. In response, Wilder argued that Tedder was not a resident of House District 109. (R. pp. 211 – 215). In fact, Wilder went to so far as to argue that Tedder was not qualified to run for House District 109. (R. p. 212, lines 4 -7, lines 13 – 15, lines 23 – 25, p. 213, lines 10 – 12).

On July 2, 2020, the Hon. R. Markley Dennis, Jr. issued an order granting Wilder’s Motion to Intervene as a party and granting Tedder’s appeal. (R. pp. 9 - 13). The lower court found that “after a thorough review of the Record on Appeal...and considering all arguments of counsel...the Election Board erred in finding that Wilder failed to meet the qualifications set forth in S.C. Code Ann. § 7-5-120.” (R. p. 10). The lower court went on to find that that “on February 28, 2020, Mr. Tedder established his domicile at 2629 Orchid Avenue, North Charleston, SC 29405.” (R. p. 11). The lower court further found that “on March 23, 2020, Mr. Tedder filed his Statement of Intention of Candidacy (“SIC”) and Party Pledge for State House of Representatives, District 109...Following the filing of his SIC, Mr. Tedder was qualified by the South Carolina Democratic Party and certified to be a qualified candidate for State House of Representatives, District 109 in the June 2020 Primary and November 2020 general election.” (R. p. 12). The lower court held that “because Mr. Tedder meets the provisions set forth in S.C. Code Ann. § 7-1-25(D) and has

established his domicile at 2629 Orchid Avenue...this Court finds him to meet the qualifications set forth in S.C. Code. Ann. § 7-[5]-120.” (R. p. 13). Wilder attempted to file a motion to alter or amend Judge Dennis’s order but failed to fully comply with the requirements as stated in Rule 59(g), SCRCPP, thereby failing to stay the time to file an appeal.²

On June 19, 2020, Wilder filed a summons and complaint the Circuit Court, wherein he requested a declaration from the lower court that Tedder was not a resident of House District 109 on March 23, 2020. (R. p. 24). In his complaint, Wilder alleges that “Defendant Tedder is not qualified...because he did not meet the criteria of SC Constitution Article III, Section 7 that be[ing] domiciled in the District at the time of filing.” (R. p. 23). On August 21, 2020, Tedder filed a Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6), SCRCPP, on the basis that Wilder failed to state a claim upon which relief could be granted, due to Wilder being collaterally estopped from further litigating the issue of Tedder’s domicile.

A hearing on Tedder’s Motion to Dismiss was held before the Hon. R. Ferrell Cothran, Jr. on August 25, 2020. At the hearing before the lower court on Tedder’s Motion to Dismiss, Tedder presented argument that the issue of Tedder’s domicile had been argued by Wilder and Tedder and ruled upon by Judge Dennis. (R. p. 223, lines 12 – 23, p. 224, lines 1 – 11). At the hearing, Wilder requested that Judge Cothran reconsider Judge Dennis’s July 2, 2020 order, which he declined to do. (R. p 227, lines 22 – 25, p. 228, lines 1 – 8). Wilder agreed with Judge Cothran that “the only issue in both of these [matters] is whether he was a legal residen[t] at the time he filed.” (R. p. 228, lines 9 – 11). Wilder further agreed with Judge Cothran that Judge Dennis’s order found Tedder to be a qualified elector in House District 109. (R. p. 229, lines 17 - 19). Wilder attempted to

² Wilder inappropriately filed a Notice of Intent to Appeal the July 2, 2020 Order with the South Carolina Supreme Court on September 8, 2020. *See* Appellate Case No. 2020-1209. Tedder and the LLC filed Motions to Dismiss the appeal based on Wilder’s lack of standing and failure to comply with the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure, which as of the date of this filing, remains pending before this Court. *Id.*

bifurcate S.C. Const. art. III, § 7, which states, in pertinent part, “a candidate for the...House of Representatives...must be a legal resident of the district in which he is a candidate at the time he files for the office.” (R. p. 228, lines 17 – 25, p. 229, lines 19 – 20). Wilder’s meager attempt to argue that the doctrine of collateral estoppel could not apply because the issue decided by Judge Dennis was based on “the domicile statute,” while the issue before Judge Cothran in the declaratory action was whether Tedder was “a legal resident” of House District 109. (R. p. 228, lines 17 – 25). As pointed out by the lower court, Wilder failed to realize that “the domicile statute” states that “a person’s residence is his domicile.” S.C. Code Ann. § 7-1-25.

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